
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Board of Directors Meeting,  

June 28, 2022 
 

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer or mobile app 
Click here to join the meeting 

Or call in (audio only) 
+1 469-262-1747,,267577321#   United States, Dallas 

Phone Conference ID: 267 577 321# 

Find a local number | Reset PIN 
Learn More | Meeting options  

 

    Call to Order Stephen Westbrooks 
 

Mission Moment  
 
Minutes of April 26, 2022, Meeting Kimberley Batteast-Moore 
 
Treasurers Report Rob Anderson 

Strategic Topic 2021 Audit Presentation Representatives 
of Cohn Reznick 

 
CEO Report Kimberly McKinney 

Committee Reports: 
Discussion of any requiring Board action and/or questions regarding written reports. 

Other/Open Business 

Adjournment of Full Board 

Executive Session 

Adjournment 

MARK YOUR CALENDARS: 
Upcoming Events 
Tuesday, June 28, 2022   Board Meeting, 11:30 AM 
Tuesday, July 26, 2022   NO Board Meeting 
Tuesday, August 23, 2022   Board Meeting, 11:30 AM 
Tuesday, September 27, 2022  Board Meeting, 11:30 AM 
Tuesday, October 25, 2022   Board Meeting, 11:30 AM 

“A world where everyone has a decent place to live” 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OTc0OGQzNDAtZGU5OC00MjlhLTgzNTEtOTkxZGJlYjYzYWFl%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%225cd816cf-8e99-4702-80c0-f02484750ce0%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%220d52ec1f-8f79-434b-bc46-d4d16f50a36d%22%7d
tel:+14692621747,,267577321# 
https://dialin.teams.microsoft.com/52e9d420-b1e8-451b-8c14-c07dd4d0e748?id=267577321
https://mysettings.lync.com/pstnconferencing
https://aka.ms/JoinTeamsMeeting
https://teams.microsoft.com/meetingOptions/?organizerId=0d52ec1f-8f79-434b-bc46-d4d16f50a36d&tenantId=5cd816cf-8e99-4702-80c0-f02484750ce0&threadId=19_meeting_OTc0OGQzNDAtZGU5OC00MjlhLTgzNTEtOTkxZGJlYjYzYWFl@thread.v2&messageId=0&language=en-US


                              Minutes from the Meeting of the Board of Directors of 
                                        Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis (HFHSL) 
                                                             April 26, 2022 
 
The following members of the Board of Directors and other interested parties participated in 

this Board meeting via conference call to avoid personal contact during the Covid -19 virus 

outbreak. Participants are listed below: 

Stephen Westbrooks  Amy Berg  Kimberley Batteast- Moore 
Subash Alias                  Jami Boyles        Lance Cage 
Jim Del Carmen  Jamey Edgerton Matt Guymon          
Marc Hirshman  Malaika Home  Linda Loewenstein                 
Linda Moen   LaDawn Ostmann Brian Pratt 
Chris Roethelli   Floyd Simms  John Short    
 Pattye Taylor -Phillips Lauren Talley  Nat Walsh 
 Paul Woodruff  Kevin Wilson  Kimberly McKinney 
 

Stephen Westbrooks called the meeting to order at 11:33 am.  

 

Mission Moment: Mission statement was presented by Vikki Sparks from Brown and Crouppen 

in Jill Taylor’s absence. Vikki has been with Brown and Crouppen for 18 years. She has 

completed 10 to 12 builds with Habitat for Humanity, she also loves everything about Habitat, 

the giving back, learning something new and the uniqueness of the organization, Vikki returns 

every year because of the amazing people at Habitat. She is proud of being able to give back to 

a community that once embraced her with open arms as a single mom at the age of 25 and 

looking back on how she has grown. Reasons to volunteer as Vikki expressed, helping, giving, 

and returning the love she once received. 

Minutes: A motion to approve the minutes from March 23,2022 Board of Directors Meeting, 

made by Nat Walsh and seconded by Jamey Edgerton, the motion was approved. 

Treasurer’s Report: Chris Roethelli provided the treasurer’s report in the absence of Rob 

Anderson. He provided an overview of Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis Financial Dashboard for 

the month of March. The Restore South Side is at 90% of YTD budget and doing well. Revenue 

for the Restore Des Peres is at 68% of YTD budget. Staffing continuity at Des Peres has been a 

challenge. Expenses are on track and in line with the budget. Restore Southside is doing well. 

Dashboard Net Profit/Loss. YTD Actual is (134,815), and YTD Budget is (227,183). 59% of 

budget. Better results are due to Mission Support and Fund Raising. 

Expenses are on track and in with the budget 

Please make sure to send your board gift for 2022, only 37% have given as of today. 

CEO REPORT: Kimberly reported the following information for April 2022 



She reminded the Board of the April asks 

• Have you donated to an endowment fund at another organization? We would 

like to hear from you about how were approached and what made you give. 

Endowment funds are new to us here at Habitat Saint Louis and we want to get 

it right. If you are willing to talk about your giving experience, Harper would like 

to talk to you about it. 

• Remember third party fundraisers add up to big donation dollars and exposure 

to new audiences- We can raise money for Habitat without a great commitment 

of resources from Habitat. Think outside the box and let us know your ideas or 

great examples you have seen with our agencies. Upcoming examples include a 

round up for Habitat on your tax returns with a tax prep company, $ 1 donated 

per bottle of Rose sold in May, and dress down day in a corporate office. 

• Builders Club Teams – We do not have to make big ask right away for a business 

to get involved with Habitat. It is often best to start with a small group and build 

engagement. Know someone who might be interested? Make an introduction 

and we can cultivate a team building experience for smaller groups. 

KMOV 2022 is a go, see more as part of Program! 

Big League Impact Foundation: Keith Brooks, who is now Executive Director of Wainwright’s 

Foundation (Big League Impact) has verbally shared that St. Louis Cardinals infielder Paul 

Goldschmidt had selected Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis as his #AllWin charity of choice. 

Details around the gift are pending. This comes after Keith was invited to a build during 2021 

KMOV and follow up meetings where Keith requested a proposal that reflected “toe in the 

water to big splash” opportunities. 

Program 

Neighborhoods/Home Construction/Homebuyers 

Virtual workshops are underway with Tier 2 and 3 applicants, averaging 15 participants per 

session. 

CDA = Community Development Administration, home funds. 

Gate District – 

3427 Park Avenue, 63104(as a sample address, 1 of 5 / 3 homes closed in December)/ 3 blocks 

east of Grand ($69,860/ house in AHTF subsidy). 

Houses 4 and 5 are at drywall on interior (scheduled for next week). Exterior siding is complete, 

masonry also scheduled fir next week. Anticipated completion of July. 

Completing final design on Vista lots (Gate Phase 2) and have asked Midtown Redevelopment 

to expedite to design approval for City submission. 

Lookaway Phase 2 –  

711 Lookaway Court, 63137(as a sample address, 1 of 7). 



North St. Louis City across from Chain of Rocks 

Park.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

$78,576/ house subsidy ($54,300 CDA/ $ 24.276 AHTF).                                                

House 1- Foundation backfilled; windows delivered. Volunteers on site. 

Design and permitting being finalized for remaining houses. 

No update re; Lingard lawsuit, discovery is ongoing. 

 

KMOV: 

2022 KMOV has been confirmed an increase in the per partner amount from $5k to $8k. Several 

of the 2021partners have confirmed their return. The build site is likely to be University City, 

north of Olive. Overall, the UCity development consists of 3 homes, and $400,150 in subsidy 

funds from St. Louis County Office of Community 

Development.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

2021: 4314 Itaska, 63116 in the Bevo Mill Neighborhood of St. Louis City.                                                     

$57,900 in AHTF subsidy – continue to await completion of grant document. June closing 

anticipated. 

Art Place Initiative (API): Closing for the second single family property is in process. Family 

Services staff working with API to qualify additional buyers. 

FUTURE BUILDS 

Those listed below represent no change from the prior report (s)t. 

Old North St. Louis Phase 3-3 homes, $ 270,000. CDA has determined that the sound issue 

related to the sites identified would prevent funding. Replacement sites being identified. 

 

Management/General/Covid 19 

HFHI 

The most recent information regarding the Habitat 2.0 Financial Model and received just prior 

to the meetings in Atlanta is outlined below. 

• Cash transfers from HFHI to Habitat Saint Louis over the three-year period of 2017-2019 

averaged $70,021. With $ 26,000 returned from Habitat Saint Louis to HFHI (SOSI $ 

25,000 and Tithe $ 1,000), the average of cash exchanged is $ 44,021. 

• The number of direct marketing (direct mail, electronic mail, media inserts, 

telemarketing) donors giving to Habitat for Humanity International from the St. Louis 

geographic service area (GSA) and the amount of funds raised is detailed below (average 

of $ 531,712). 

 

FY                              Number of Donors                       Amount Raised 

2021                         4.252                                               $617,309          



2020                         3,781                                               $484,175 

2019                         3,940                                               $493,651 

 

• Under the current Habitat 2.0 model – 

           Cash transfers from HFHI to Habitat Saint Louis =$ 372,482 which represents the three-

year average of $ 70,021 +$ 302,461 (the three-year average of amount raised less HFHI Cost to 

Fundraise, projected to be $ 229,251). 

Habitat Saint Louis would pay a fee of $ 310,371 which represents four “levers” – (1) Population 

based at .20 cents per person in GSA, (2) Revenue based at 1 % of revenue line item in 990, (3) 

Production Credit, (4) Area Media Income adjustment (none for St. Louis). 

For a net of $62,111 

South Grand 

The metal fencing to encompass the administrative/south side parking (to prevent cut through 

traffic and hopefully reduce issues with Family Dollar) is slated to be installed in early May with 

much thanks to Todd Gibson and Team Spire who have volunteered to take on this project. 

 

Staff 

Irena Dimitri (HFHSL Finance Manager) remains on unpaid leave for a yet to be defined period. 

Other staff (Brenda Pierce, Construction Administrator and George Leshkov, Accounting 

Coordinator) continue to oversee some of the financial management duties with their work 

being supplemented by Elana Stoilova (temporary assistance). 

 

CONFIDENTIAL: Restructuring of the Construction department is underway as Kyle Hunsberger, 

Director of Construction has indicated a desire to transition from his current role. He is 

interested in continuing with the general contractor work with API (and possibly with Old north 

St. Louis). Additionally, the city has approached Habitat Saint Louis to consider taking on some 

of the CDA repair work (and this may also fall under a new/reduced role for Kyle). Jenny 

Gudmestad, Site Assistant, continues her transition from Site Assistant to Project Manager. 

 

Note there is no Board meeting on May 24th. Mark your calendar: There is a Board Special Event 

planned at Tower Grove Park, Thursday, May 19th. The June meeting, June 28th, will be the Audit 

Presentation and it will be held in person at the Habitat office. Board Members please send 

your 2022 statement commitment and waiver forms to Kimberly. 

 

 Jami Boyles motion to adjourn meeting, at 12:15 pm, Malaika Horne 2 nd the motion, and the 

motion was approved by the Board. 

 Respectfully submitted: Kimberley Batteast- Moore, Board Secretary.                                          



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis Dashboard 

as of May 31, 2022

RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT May YTD

New Donors 4 35

New Keystone Benefit 

Members                                   

($1500+ Annually/Mission 

Support) 4 24

Build Benefits Pledged $0 $123,500

Build Benefits Recd To Date $13,514 $102,014

Renewed Donors 30%

BOD Funds Pledged $500 $30,800

BOD:  Funds Received $1,250 $20,950

BOD % Giving 15% 52%

BOD Meeting Attendance 69%  

PROGRAM

Homes Under Construction 6

Homes Closed 0

Average Cost / Closed Home n/a

Future Build Sites Available 17

Applicants Pipeline 50 200+

Mortgage Loan Fund Balance $4,090,610

RESTORE YTD Actual YTD Budget % Annual Budget Notes

Revenue RSS 182,316$      222,000$       82% $550,000 Sales Only

Revenue RDP 170,547$      249,500$       68% 615,000$           

ReStore P/L 39,090$        94,965$         41% 483,241$           

# of Donations 730

FINANCIALS

Income:  Mission Support 368,027$      322,440$       114% $1,281,750

Program 215,980$      120,505$       179% $3,949,303

ReStore 856,733$      1,094,808$   78% $3,084,205

Management General 101,789$      97,740$         104% $382,745

Other

TOTAL INCOME 1,542,529$  1,635,493$   94% $8,698,003

Expenses: Home Construction 41,905$        28,556$         147% $3,187,635 CIP = $883,752

Operating  892,456$      938,182$       95% $2,893,983

ReStore 817,643$      999,843$       82% $2,600,964

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,752,004$  1,966,581$   89% $8,682,582

Net Profit/Loss (209,475)$    (331,088)$     63% $15,421

YTD 2022 YTD 2021

Year/Year Change in Cash 58,234$        163,732$       

Year/Year AP 297,068$      725,970$       

Year/Year Debt LT 3,236,979$  3,276,802$   

Year/Year Debt ST 735,064$      1,087,497$   

Notes:

 

Not all groups go through pledge process

Not including API / API +3

4 or 5 LaSaisonII, 6 Lookaway, 3 Gate Dist., 3 UCity

(352,433)$                         

(39,823)$                           

Both Royal Banks and FirstBank renewed with a second $1 mill each

142 Pick Ups/Drop Offs: 89 RSS and 499 RDP

Change

(105,498)$                         

(428,902)$                         



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis Board of Directors Meeting               
Tuesday, June 28, 2022 
CEO Report 
 
Success and Shout Outs! 
 
Resource Development 

June Asks 
• (A repeat – We need to hear from you.) Have you donated to an endowment 

fund at another organization? We would like to hear from you about how you 
were approached and what made you give. Endowment funds are new to us here 
at Habitat Saint Louis and we want to get it right. If you are willing to talk about 
your giving experience, Harper would like to talk to you about it.  

• Challenge your industry! Let's get a few Industry challenges on the calendar. One 
month, one industry, and a challenge; to raise as much money as possible. In the 
past we had the title industry take up the challenge and 11 title agencies raised 
over $21,000 by pledging $5 per closing per side. Could you do something like 
this in your industry and by our champion by sending out the call to others in your 
line of work? 

• What brought you to Habitat? Would love to share your story for a blog post. 
Reach out to Harper.  

 
The MoHAB riders from Manchester United Methodist Church (pictured below) are 
celebrating their 25th year with us. Expected to raise $30,000. After 10 weeks, 42 
participants logged 9,049 miles walking, running, and biking. In over 25 years, the group 
has raised over $500k.    
 

 



Big League Impact Foundation: Plans underway for a fall event to celebrate the $50k + 
commitment from St. Louis Cardinals infielder Paul Goldschmidt as his #AllWin charity 
of choice.  

 

Program                                                         
Neighborhoods/ Home Construction/Homebuyers  
CDA = Community Development Administration, HOME funds. 
AHTF = Affordable Housing Trust Fund 
 
Minor Home Repair (Action Needed) 
HFHSL has been selected to receive a renewable 3-year grant from the City of St. Louis 
to launch and manage a minor home repair program for low-income homeowners. The 
$280,000 award will allow for the hiring of at least two additional staff members, as well 
as equipment and materials needed to serve an estimated 144 households in the first 
12-months. Year One fund estimates are as follows – Salaries and Benefits of $164,500 
(new and partial existing), Reimbursables (Office Space/Vehicle/Supplies) of $30,000, 
Supplies and Materials (related to home repair) $60,000, Contractor’s Fee of $25,500.  
 
HFHSL families in need of repairs could qualify for the program, if they are current on 
their taxes and mortgage. Unlike Healthy Home Repair, where the administrator’s role is 
primarily selecting and managing sub-contractors for larger “critical” repairs 
homeowners need – roof replacements, hot water heater swaps, faulty electrical, etc., 
the Minor Home Repair program is focused on non-permitted work, like painting, stair 
and banister repair, leaky faucets, swapping out fixtures or replacing a thermostat.  
 
Gate District –  
3427 Park Avenue, 63104 (as sample address, 1 of 5 / 3 homes closed in December) / 3 blocks 
east of Grand ($69,860/house in AHTF subsidy).  
Houses 4 and 5 have masonry completed and are wrapping up interior finishes. Late August – 
early September closing anticipated pending completion of subsidy documents and ability to get 
flatwork completed. Completing final design on 1 of 2 Vista lots with intent to apply for permits 
by August 1.  

  
 
 



Lookaway Phase 2 –  

711 Lookaway Court, 63137 (as a sample address, 1 of 7).  
North St. Louis City across from Chain of Rocks Park.  
$78,576/house subsidy ($54,300 CDA / $24,276 AHTF).  
House 1 – Roof trusses are being set. Application for permits on remaining houses 
submitted, approved by MSD, City approval remains pending.  
 
Lingard lawsuit: The written discovery in the form of interrogatories and request for 
production of documents on his counsel remains open (overdue).  
 

 
 
 

KMOV:  
2022 KMOV is confirmed for the weeks of October 24 – 28 and November 14 – 18 with 
dedication on November 21st. KMOV is soliciting partners at $8k/per. Overall, the UCity 
development consists of 3 homes, and $400,150 in subsidy funds from St. Louis County 
Office of Community Development. Aerial photo follows: 

 
 

2021:  4314 Itaska, 63116 in the Bevo Mill neighborhood of St. Louis City.  



Documents with AHTF are completed (or completed enough). Closing has been 
scheduled for July 13th.  
 
Art Place Initiative (API): Closing for the second single family property remains pending. Design 
underway for triplex as next build within project.   
 

Future Builds:  
Those listed below represent no change from the prior report(s)t: 
Old North St. Louis Phase 3 – 3 homes, $270,000. CDA has determined that the sound issue related to 
the sites identified would prevent funding. Replacement sites being identified. Possible project similar to 
API being considered with Old North St. Louis Restoration Group.   
 

Management/General/Covid 19 
  
HFHI (Action Requested) 
As previously shared in CEO reports, Habitat for Humanity International through a 
Collaborative Operating Model taskforce has proposed a structure “Habitat 2.0” that 
would replace the current SOSI fee and give money raised by them via direct marketing 
(less fundraising costs) back to affiliates.  
  
Since returning from the conference held in Atlanta in March 2022, I have learned the 
following: 
  
Average cash transfer by affiliate size (from HFHI to affiliate: 2019 - 2021) - 
$908,000      
Our average cash transfer (same years as above):  $94,824 
  
Average amount raised in GSA of comparable size:  $251,224                                
Average amount raised in STL:  $531,712 
  
Under the currently proposed Habitat 2.0 model –  

Cash transfers from HFHI to Habitat Saint Louis = $372,482 which represents the 
three-year average of $70,021 + $302,461 (the three-year average of amount 
raised less HFHI Cost to Fundraise is projected to be $229,251). 

  
Habitat Saint Louis would pay a fee of $310,371 which represents four “levers” – 
(1) Population based at .20 cents per person in GSA, (2) Revenue based at 1% 
of revenue line item in 990, (3) Production Credit, (4) Area Media Income 
adjustment (none for St. Louis). 

  
For a net of $62,111 (and a “loss” over the current amount - which I think is 
already far too low given the amount raised - of $32,713). 

  
I have also learned that a group of affiliate leaders have drafted a letter asking Habitat 
for Humanity International to rethink the process behind determining this fee. The text of 
the most recent letter is below and attached is a preamble drafted by EJ Thomas from 
the Columbus Ohio affiliate that will accompany the letter. As background, EJ is a 
former State elected official and we served on the US Council together. The letter which 



has not been broadly distributed has just over 40 affiliates who have already signed on 
including Greater Birmingham (Charles Moore) and Habitat for Humanity MS Gulf Coast 
(Chris Monforton) – both of were also on US Council at the same time as me (and EJ) 
along with HabiJax (Jacksonville FL), Greater Miami, and Dallas Area Habitat, among 
others. The new date for the letter to be sent is June 30th.  
  
While I do not necessarily agree with all the “pain points” referenced, I agree with 
enough of them that I would advocate for signing – if nothing else, it would 
hopefully pause the process currently slated to begin July 2024 and hopefully 
send a signal to HFHI that more work is needed. As it will be sent by some 
affiliates regardless of whether we sign on or not, I think the greatest risk equally 
exists regardless – and that is that if this issue somehow creeps into the media. 
In advance of the June Board meeting, the Executive Committee has reviewed 
and supports signing onto the letter. 
  
  
Dear HFHI IBOD, US Council, COM Executive Task Force, & HFHI Senior Staff: 
 
First, we want to thank all who have worked on the herculean effort that has come to 
be known as COM and Habitat 2.0. For those of us signing this letter, there are many 
goals and objectives that we, either individually and/or collectively, agree with. While 
the work of the COM Committee is years long, the fee proposal and actual affiliate 
impact has only recently been disclosed and it does not reflect the collective voice of 
U.S. affiliates. Accordingly, this letter serves to voice our strong objection to the 
proposed, four-component, investment fee formula and propose an alternate fee 
structure that achieves the objectives as publicly communicated to the U.S. affiliates.  
 
The main goals and objectives of COM and Habitat 2.0 have been communicated as: 
1)         Eliminate the local area (aka service area) direct marketing fundraising (DM) 
competition between Habitat International (HFHI) and affiliates while facilitating 
further donor cultivation. Note: this includes undesignated donations made through 
HFHI’s website. 
a)     HFHI is not able to significantly cultivate these donors because, in most cases, i) 
the DM donor thinks they are giving to their local affiliate; and, ii) HFHI can’t get them 
involved in local affiliate activities.  
b)         The local affiliate is not able to cultivate the HFHI DM donor because they 
don’t know about them and have no information about their DM donations to HFHI.  
2)         HFHI is not opposed to giving the DM dollars to local affiliates, but HFHI 
would need those funds replaced to keep HFHI financially whole. 
 
For us, a significant and unacceptable omission of the COM and Habitat 2.0 goals is:  
3)         Any new fee structure should also have a “net zero” effect on affiliates to also 
keep all affiliates, individually, financially whole.   
 
The fact that the current proposed fee structure has a negative impact on 64% of the 
965 U.S. affiliates is unacceptable. We, as a network, should not be advancing any 



fee structure with such a large negative impact to our colleagues and their 
communities. Affiliates are already experiencing significant financial burdens from 
rapidly escalating land prices, and rapidly escalating pricing and supply chain 
shortages of construction material and services. Additionally, U.S. home production 
has already decreased year after year for the last decade. Creating a net-negative 
fee structure for 64% of affiliates will surely only escalate that decline.  
 
The fact that the new structure will benefit 36% of U.S. affiliates does not offset the 
negative impact to so many affiliates and their communities. 
 
HFHI has continually said the COM and Habitat 2.0 process is affiliate led and the 
result should come from affiliates. In that spirit, we, the affiliates listed below who 
collectively produce [“a significant portion” or “majority” depending on who signs] of 
the US housing production, which results in a consistently significant positive impact 
on the brand, propose and support the following alternate fee structure:   
 
INVESTMENT FEE FORMULA: 
A.        Year 1: Investment Fee = X + Y 
X = the amount equal to the net DM proceeds, including website donations, HFHI 
received from an affiliate’s service area in the most recent 3-year average. 
Y = the amount of an affiliate’s 2022 SOSI fee 
 
B.         Year 2 and forward: Investment Fee = the Prior Year’s Investment Fee +- the 
prior calendar year’s % of inflation or deflation. 
 
In return, each year, HFHI will distribute 100% of the net donations HFHI receives 
from DM, including HFHI website donations. 
 
If an affiliate chooses to have HFHI opt out of DM in their service area, HFHI will 
continue to distribute donations received through its website and affiliates will take on 
the responsibility of raising and paying the Investment Fee as calculated above, 
regardless of the decreased transfer from HFHI. This structure gives the affiliate the 
choice about whether to collaborate with HFHI on DM but keeps HFHI financially 
whole no matter what the affiliate decides. 
 
This structure offers a win-win financial balance as affiliates will have the opportunity 
to cultivate and grow the donor and their donations. Affiliates will also have the option 
of working with HFHI, through DM or major gifts collaboration, to help facilitate that 
growth. The affiliate will realize (keep) the benefit of the donor growth and the donor 
relationships (with tithe covered in the next section).   
 
Additionally, we ask for greater transparency about the costs of DM fundraising and 
US office expenses applied to DM along with clarification on the data HFHI has on 
potential outcomes.   
 
Under this fee structure, HFHI will receive increased financial support from affiliates 



most years with the tie to inflation. If we have a recession or deflationary year, which 
can negatively impact donations received, HFHI and affiliates share the effects of the 
downturn since the fee will be reduced in that rare situation.  
 
TITHE:   
Please note, tithe is intentionally excluded from this “investment fee” formula because 
of the purposes of COM described above. The murmured question about whether 
affiliates are tithing enough, or not, and the philosophical discussion about whether 
tithe should remain voluntary or become a tax are too divisive an issue and this was 
not the purpose of COM as described above.   
 
Respectfully, the goal of increasing trust between affiliates and HFHI and eliminating 
the fund-raising competition between affiliates and HFHI in their service areas would 
be a monumental win for the entire network. That said, we understand and share the 
hope to grow tithe and Habitat’s international work, so we also propose the 
following:   
 
As the year 1 impact is “net zero” to affiliates, our intention is to keep tithing at least 
at our current level using the current formula included in our Affiliation 
Agreements.  Also, this new ability of affiliates to cultivate and grow previously 
unknown donors, and the opportunity for increased tithe dollars as our undesignated 
cash contributions grow, should not be overlooked.    
 
Additionally, we recommend adding an option on tithe coupons for affiliates to 
contribute above and beyond their tithe for HFHI’s general operations and/or general 
global support. This will give those affiliates that said they were willing to incur a 
significant deficit under the original four-component fee structure a clear mechanism 
to still transfer that cash to HFHI without hurting other affiliates (and then HFHI is 
then free to use the excess funds for its Atlanta operations or forward to international 
offices, however it sees fit).  
 
SSO/ASO SUPPORT: 
When HFHI restructured and removed their locally placed regional support offices 
SSOs/ASOs were created, and they fill a much-needed void in the Habitat network. 
We recognize and value the importance of SSOs/ASOs.  Initially, many of us were 
disappointed that SSOs/ASOs were left out of the new funding plan. However, upon 
further reflection of the COM and fee development process, the value of ASOs/SSOs 
remaining independent is clear. They serve as a safe place for affiliates to seek help 
and guidance and they are also able to provide more regionally specific training and 
advocacy work.   
 
Accordingly, we advocate for SSO/ASO affiliate-provided funding to remain separate 
from HFHI and this fee structure. We also encourage HFHI to regularly compensate 
ASOs/SSOs in more fair and meaningful ways, for the work the ASOs/SSOs are 
asked to perform by HFHI.  
 



Also, since this HFHI Investment fee formula with continued tithing under the current 
terms results in a “net zero” effect to each affiliate, we encourage affiliates to continue 
to individually support their regional SSO/ASO. In fact, we suggest membership in a 
regional ASO/SSO, when an area is served by one, be considered a “best practice” 
and included in HFHI’s annual Quality Assurance Checklist. We also support 
ASOs/SSOs continuing to create alternate funding mechanisms independent of HFHI 
to ensure the financial viability of ASOs/SSOs. We request HFHI’s encouragement 
and support for those efforts too. 
 
Thank you all for taking the time to review and act on this important letter. We 
respectfully request the COM Executive Task Force, the US Council, and the IBOD 
fulfill your promise to listen and act on our valid objection to the proposed, four-
component, investment fee formula and structure; and instead accept and adopt the 
alternate fee formula and structure described herein as it achieves the objectives as 
publicly communicated to the U.S. affiliates without hurting any individual affiliate.  
 
Attachments: Fee Calculation Sample & Comparative Graph (see link or below) 
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kFqBlsQYPckawIgwbFQy-
EEuboPSnvg8/view?usp=sharing  
 
In Christian Partnership, 
 
[List of Affiliates signing on will be added here] 
  
Staff 
Josh Smith has been hired as Director of Construction.  Josh comes to Habitat Saint 
Louis most recently as a small business owner (SmithCo) doing predominately custom 
home rehabs.  He has previous experience at Laurel Management and UIC.  Josh 
graduated with a degree from in sociology/anthropology with an emphasis on urban 
planning.  While Josh wraps up various SmithCo projects, he is working part time at 
Habitat overlapping with Kyle (both now on a parti time basis).  A press announcement 
regarding his hiring is pending.   
 
Irena Dimitrova (HFHSL Finance Manager) remains on unpaid leave for a yet to be 
defined period. Much thanks to Brenda Pierce, Construction Administrator and George 
Leshkov, Accounting Coordinator for their assistance with completing the audit on time 
and assistance with various financial management duties. The work continues to be 
supplemented by Elana Stoilova as temporary assistance. Unfortunately, George has 
announced his plans to leave Habitat as Accounting Assistant as of the end of June.  
This position along with various ReStore openings have been posted.   
 
Board Governance 
Prospective candidates are being considered for “Class of 2023” board membership.  If 
you know of someone you wish considered (either for 2023 or future), please share their 
name and information with either Stephen, Amy, or me.   
 

https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Ffile%2Fd%2F1kFqBlsQYPckawIgwbFQy-EEuboPSnvg8%2Fview%3Fusp%3Dsharing&data=05%7C01%7Chornem%40umsl.edu%7C34308532eb604c6135c208da4f03a24b%7Ce3fefdbef7e9401ba51a355e01b05a89%7C0%7C0%7C637909174900831676%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Po8vtbN31hQqgw3p82zPchRtfxOhEvfEwzhk%2F1T6GA0%3D&reserved=0
https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdrive.google.com%2Ffile%2Fd%2F1kFqBlsQYPckawIgwbFQy-EEuboPSnvg8%2Fview%3Fusp%3Dsharing&data=05%7C01%7Chornem%40umsl.edu%7C34308532eb604c6135c208da4f03a24b%7Ce3fefdbef7e9401ba51a355e01b05a89%7C0%7C0%7C637909174900831676%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Po8vtbN31hQqgw3p82zPchRtfxOhEvfEwzhk%2F1T6GA0%3D&reserved=0


Currently the Board is 28 people strong (not including Alumni members) • Male 58% / 
Female 42% • White 64% / Non-White 36% • Affiliation: Business or Corporate 40%, 
Construction 18%, Community 18%, Finance 14%, HR/Legal 10% • Member Length of 
Service: 3 years or less 42%, 4-6 years 40%, More than 6 years 18% 
 
 
South Grand 
Thanks Todd Gibson and Spire volunteers! The metal fencing to encompass the 
administrative/south side parking (to prevent cut through traffic and hopefully reduce 
issues with Family Dollar) has been mostly completed   
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions not covered in above, please feel free to email me in advance of 
Tuesday’s meeting and I will prepare for / add to our discussion. Thanks. 



Business Performance Analysis
Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis

and its Affiliates

Year Ended December 31, 2021



Meeting the 

challenges. 

Helping 

the important 

work continue.

As a top 15 national public accounting firm,
CohnReznick LLP serves the not-for-profit
industry with accounting, tax and business
advisory services to help build efficiency into
financial management processes. We have
been associated with not-for-profits since our
inception, and currently serve more than 500
every year.

By providing clients with forward thinking
advice and insights, quality services and year-
round involvement, CohnReznick is helping not-
for-profits successfully fulfill its mission; that not
only benefits them, it benefits us all.

To learn more about CohnReznick and our
services for the Not-for-Profit and Education
Industry, visit:

www.cohnreznick.com



T A B L E  O F  C O N T E N T S

Page

Auditor Communications 4 

Accounting Guidance Updates 12 

Strengths and Accomplishments 14

Opportunities for Improvement 16

Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets 17  

Support, Revenues and Expenses 19

ReStore Financial Results 23

Support, Revenues and Expenses by Segment 25

Appendix A – Passed Adjusting Entries 27



A U D I T O R  C O M M U N I C A T I O N S

To the Board of Directors

Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and its Affiliates

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Habitat for Humanity Saint

Louis and its Affiliates for the year ended December 31, 2021 and have issued our

report thereon dated Report Date. Professional standards require that we provide you

with information about our responsibilities under general accepted accounting

standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of

our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated Report

Date. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the information

in the following pages that is related to our audit.

Report Date

June 21, 2022 4



A U D I T O R  C O M M U N I C A T I O N S  
( c o n t i n u e d )

June 21, 2022 5

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The

significant accounting policies used by Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and its Affiliates

(“Habitat”) are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. We noted no transactions

entered into by Habitat during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or

consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the

proper period.

Financial Statement Disclosures
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to

financial statement issuers. The financial statement disclosures were neutral, consistent and clear.

The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements is:

• New Markets Tax Credit program investments and related debt (Note 11)



A U D I T O R  C O M M U N I C A T I O N S  
( c o n t i n u e d )

June 21, 2022 6

Management Judgment and Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management

and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events

and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive

because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that

future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive

estimates affecting the financial statements are:

• Mortgage receivables are valued at fair market value at inception, at which time the face

value is reported net of an expected discount (based on historical sales prices) that will

result from conversion to sales to a third-party financial institution.

• Management’s estimate of the allowances for uncollectible accounts for promises to give

and mortgages receivable is based on past collection history and knowledge of the third

parties.



A U D I T O R  C O M M U N I C A T I O N S  
( c o n t i n u e d )

June 21, 2022 7

Management Judgment and Estimates (continued)

• Leased homes and homes available for sale are valued in inventory at cost, net of

impairment that will result from conversion to sales.

• Construction in progress includes direct material and equipment costs and indirect home

construction costs. Costs are expensed when home sale revenue is recognized. CIP is

recorded at cost, net of impairment that will result from conversion to sales.

• Management’s estimate of the depreciable lives of property and equipment is based on

the assets’ estimate useful lives.

• Functional expense allocations are calculated based on periodic time and expense

studies.

We have evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in

determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.



A U D I T O R  C O M M U N I C A T I O N S  
( c o n t i n u e d )

June 21, 2022 8

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and

completing our audit.

Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this communication, a disagreement with management is a financial

accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could

be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that

no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.



A U D I T O R  C O M M U N I C A T I O N S  
( c o n t i n u e d )

June 21, 2022 9

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit,

other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of

management. No such material misstatements were noted.

In addition, none of the uncorrected misstatements detected as a result of the audit procedures

were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a

whole. Management has passed on these adjustments, which are summarized at Appendix A.



A U D I T O R  C O M M U N I C A T I O N S  
( c o n t i n u e d )

June 21, 2022 10

Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and

auditing standards, with management on an on-going basis. These discussions occur in the

normal course of our professional relationship and there were no matters of significant discussion

that affected our retention as Habitat’s auditors.

Management Representations
We will request certain representations from management that will be included in the

management representation letter prior to finalizing the audit.



A U D I T O R  C O M M U N I C A T I O N S  
( c o n t i n u e d )

June 21, 2022 11

Management’s Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and

accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a

consultation involves application of an accounting principle to Habitat’s financial statements or

a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our

professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the

consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with

other accountants.



A C C O U N T I N G  G U I D A N C E  U P D A T E S  -
T E C H N I C A L  T I M E L I N E

12

Effective Date Accounting Standards Update

January 1, 2022

January 1, 2023

Leases

Financial Instruments – Credit Losses



T E C H N I C A L  U P D A T E S  ( C O N T I N U E D )

Leases
In February 2016, the FASB released its long-awaited standard for lease accounting

(Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02), in an effort to reduce “off-balance

sheet accounting.” The IASB issued a similar standard in January 2016.

The main difference between current guidance and the update is the recognition of

lease assets and lease liabilities on the books for those leases previously classified as

operating leases.

13



T E C H N I C A L  U P D A T E S  ( C O N T I N U E D )

Financial Instruments – Credit Losses
In June 2016, the FASB released its standard for lease accounting (Accounting

Standards Update No. 2016-13), to update the impairment model for financial assets

measured at amortized cost, known as the Current Expected Credit Loss (“CECL”)

model.

For trade and other receivables, held-to-maturity debt securities, loans and other

instruments, entities will be required to use a new forward-looking "expected loss"

model that generally will result in the earlier recognition of allowance for losses. For

available-for-sale debt securities with unrealized losses, there will be no change to the

measurement of credit losses, except that unrealized losses due to credit-related

factors will be recognized as an allowance on the balance sheet with a

corresponding adjustment to earnings in the income statement.

14



S T R E N G T H S  A N D  A C C O M P L I S H M E N T S

June 21, 2022 15

1. During 2021 and despite the continued 
challenges of the pandemic, 11 homes
– all built to Zero Energy Ready
standards – were under construction in 
La Saison, Gate, Lookaway and Bevo
Mill. Additionally, 6 homes closed during 
the year.

2. For the first time, HFHSL received an 
allocation of $250,000 from the State of 
MO through a general revenue 
allocation. Because of the first-year 
success, a second allocation in the 
same amount has since been procured. 

3. In keeping with the PPP program intent 
to provide economic relief to entities 
adversely impacted by the pandemic, 
HFHSL successfully applied for and 
received a second round of PPP 
funding of over $430,000. Meeting all 
the terms of the program, the loan was 
also forgiven during 2021. 



S T R E N G T H S  A N D  A C C O M P L I S H M E N T S ( c o n t . )

June 21, 2022 16

4. While corporate support through the 
Keystone Community Partnership 
decreased due to the restrictions of 
providing build benefits, individual giving 
increased by just under 20% resulting in 
overall strong Mission Support revenue. 

5. In partnership with the Art Place Initiative, 
as General Contractor among other roles, 
two additional units of affordable housing 
were generated in the Gravois South 
Jefferson area along with over $50,000 in 
revenue to HFHSL.

6. The ReStore program remained profitable 
while also diverting over 8,000 tons of 
materials from area landfills. 



O P P O R T U N I T I E S  
F O R  I M P R O V E M E N T

June 21, 2022 17

Area Recommendation
- Fundraising

- Liquidity and operations

- Mortgage servicing

Renewed campaign for fundraising
participation by all Board Members and
Management.

Continue to improve operating cash flow
and management of current liabilities in
accordance with the new Financial
Reporting standards

Research capabilities of accounting software
system to determine if improvements can be
made to tracking homeowners’ escrow
balances and for servicing in-house
mortgages prior to sale.



A S S E T S ,  L I A B I L I T I E S ,  
A N D  N E T  A S S E T S

June 21, 2022 18

2021 2020 Observations
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 142,992 51,916$                 
Restricted cash  79,720 86,474
Pledges receivable 2,100 17,600
Grants receivable 26,400 3,900

Other receivables 613,100 283,315
Increase due to the timing of check exchange payments

Home construction and inventory 936,359 1,494,120 Decrease due to five houses from 2020 selling in 2021 
ReStore inventory 234,590 320,162

Prepaid expenses and other assets 708,815 493,600

Total current assets 2,753,076              2,751,087             

Fixed assets
Property and equipment, net 3,629,265 3,746,672

Total fixed assets  3,629,265              3,746,672             

Long‐term assets
Mortgages receivable ‐ long‐term, net  1,249,989 1,459,972
Investments in New Markets Tax Credit programs

Harbor Habitat Leverage III, LLC 1,194,824 1,194,824
Harbor Habitat Leverage II, LLC 1,260,552 1,260,552

Capitalized costs, net  124,735 166,103

Total long‐term assets  3,830,100              4,081,451             

Total assets 10,212,441$          10,579,210$         

December 31,



A S S E T S ,  L I A B I L I T I E S ,  
A N D  N E T  A S S E T S  ( c o n t i n u e d )

June 21, 2022 19

2021 2020 Observations
Current liabilities

Line of credit  377,048$                882,624$                Decrease due to line of credit payoff with house sales
Current portion of long‐term debt  40,611 29,767
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  973,076 834,494
Deferred revenue 650,560 834,959

Total current liabilities 2,041,295              2,581,844             

Deposits liability
Mortgage escrows 270,747 365,390

Long‐term liabilities
Long‐term debt 3,213,322 3,250,465
Long‐term debt ‐ NMTC
2017 and 2020 transactions 3,236,250              3,236,250             

Total long‐term liabilities 6,449,572              6,486,715             

Total liabilities 8,761,614              9,433,949             

Net assets
Without donor restrictions 1,435,941              1,132,875             
With donor restrictions 14,886                    12,386                   

Total net assets  1,450,827              1,145,261             

Total liabilities and net assets 10,212,441$          10,579,210$         

December 31,



S U P P O R T,  R E V E N U E S  
A N D  E X P E N S E S

June 21, 2022 20

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Total support and revenues 6,888,677$               4,464,318$               7,081,675$               7,555,021$               7,952,288$               

Expenses
Program services:

Home construction 3,342,278                 1,719,778                 3,717,872                 3,224,515                 3,514,370                 
ReStore operating expenses 2,285,731                 2,000,562                 2,451,406                 2,594,225                 2,334,475                 

Total program services 5,628,009                 3,720,340                 6,169,278                 5,818,740                 5,848,845                 

Supporting activities:
Management and general 647,758                     589,707                     748,329                     727,102                     881,421                     
Fundraising 307,344                     251,588                     321,560                     353,024                     315,671                     

Total supporting activities 955,102                     841,295                     1,069,889                 1,080,126                 1,197,092                 

Total expenses 6,583,111                 4,561,635                 7,239,167                 6,898,866                 7,045,937                 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 305,566$                  (97,317)$                   (157,492)$                 656,155$                  906,351$                  

For the Years Ended December 31,



S U P P O R T  A N D  R E V E N U E S

June 21, 2022 21

2021 2020 Observations
Support and revenues

Contributions and sponsorships 1,810,396$            1,537,187$           
Grants 375,180 117,200
Sales to homeowners 1,548,002 270,000
ReStore retail sales  997,770 825,800

Donated property, materials and services 1,054,563 869,215
Increase due to more donated materials received in
2021

Fundraising and special events, net 9,109 18,297
Investment income 27,805 21,430

Other income  1,065,852 805,189

Increase is mainly due to higher management fee 
income this year, and income from land sales of 
$87,500

Total support and revenues 6,888,677$            4,464,318$           

For the Years Ended December 31,

Increase due to more home closings. Closings 
trigger the recognition of grant revenue.



S U P P O R T  A N D  R E V E N U E S
( c o n t i n u e d )

June 21, 2022 22

Year ended December 31, 2021 = $6,888,677

Public 
support

42%

Grant 
revenue

5%

ReStore 
sales
15%

Other
16%

Sales to 
home 

owners
22%

Year ended December 31, 2020 = $4,464,318

Public 
support

54%

Grant 
revenue

3%

ReStore 
sales
18%

Other
19%

Sales to 
home 

owners
6%



E X P E N S E S

June 21, 2022 23

Program services

Management and general

Fundraising

Year ended December 31, 2021 = $6,583,111

85%

10%
5%

82%

13%
5%

Year ended December 31, 2020 = $4,561,635



R E S T O R E  F I N A N C I A L  R E S U L T S

June 21, 2022 24

For the Years Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Revenues

ReStore sales 997,770$                  825,800$                  1,214,822$              1,249,355$              1,097,805$            
Donated materials 958,401                    841,511                    1,192,847                 1,305,675                 1,124,729               
Contributions 459,642                    447,816                    658,525                    403,256                    509,560                  
Grant and other revenues ‐                             ‐                             ‐                             30,000                       35,000                     

Total revenues 2,415,813                 2,115,127                 3,066,194                 2,988,286                 2,767,094               

Expenses
Cost of sales 1,043,973                 833,900                    1,210,903                 1,248,904                 1,097,058               
Operating expenses 1,241,758                 1,166,662                 1,240,503                 1,345,321                 1,237,417               

Total expenses 2,285,731                 2,000,562                 2,451,406                 2,594,225                 2,334,475               

Net income 130,082$                  114,565$                  614,788$                  394,061$                  432,619$                



R E S T O R E  F I N A N C I A L  R E S U L T S  
( c o n t i n u e d )

June 21, 2022 25

2,
41

5,
81

3 

2,
11

5,
12

7 

3,
06

6,
19

4 

2,
98

8,
28

6 

2,
76

7,
09

4 

2,
28

5,
73

7 

2,
00

0,
56

2 

2,
45

1,
40

6 

2,
59

4,
22

5 

2,
33

4,
47

5 

13
0,

07
6 

11
4,

56
5 61

4,
78

8 

39
4,

06
1 

43
2,

61
9 

 -

 400,000

 800,000

 1,200,000

 1,600,000

 2,000,000

 2,400,000

 2,800,000

 3,200,000

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Revenues Expenses Net income (loss)



T O T A L  S U P P O R T,  R E V E N U E S ,  
A N D  E X P E N S E S  B Y  S E G M E N T - 2 0 2 1

June 21, 2022 26

Home Building ReStore Special Events Other Total

Total  support and revenues 2,434,484$                2,415,813$                9,109$                       2,029,271$                6,888,677$               

Tota l  expenses 3,342,278                  2,285,731                  ‐                             955,102                     6,583,111                 

Net income (loss ) (907,794)$                  130,082$                   9,109$                       1,074,169$                305,566$                  

HOME BUILDING
Total

Support and revenues
Contributions  and sponsorships 415,140$                  
Grants 375,180
Sa les  to homeowners 1,548,002
Donated materia ls  and services 96,162

Tota l  support and revenues 2,434,484                 

Expenses
Direct costs

Hard costs 1,538,851                 
Soft costs 867,980                    

Indi rect costs 546,305                    
Di scount on mortgages 292,980
Donated materia ls  and services 96,162

Tota l  expenses 3,342,278                 

Net loss (907,794)$                 

SPECIAL EVENTS Other
Trivia Events Total

Total  revenues ‐$                     9,109$                 9,109$                

Tota l  expenses ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

Net income ‐$                     9,109$                 9,109$                

RESTORE
Total

Support and revenues
Sales 997,770$                  
Donated materia l s 958,401
Contributions 459,642                    
Grants ‐                            

Tota l  support and revenues 2,415,813                 
Expenses

Cost of sa les 1,043,973
Other 1,241,758                 

Tota l  expenses 2,285,731                 

Net income 130,082$                  

OTHER
Total

Support and revenues
Contributions 935,614$                  
Other income 1,093,657                 

Tota l  support and revenues 2,029,271                 
Expenses

Management and genera l 647,758                    
Fundra is ing 307,344                    

Tota l  expenses 955,102                    

Net income 1,074,169$               



T O T A L  S U P P O R T,  R E V E N U E S ,  
A N D  E X P E N S E S  B Y  S E G M E N T - 2 0 2 0

June 21, 2022 27

Home Building ReStore Special Events Other Total

Tota l  support and revenues 724,383$                   2,115,127$                18,297$                     1,606,511$                4,464,318$               

Tota l  expenses 1,719,778                  2,000,562                  ‐                             841,295                     4,561,635                 

Net income (loss ) (995,395)$                  114,565$                   18,297$                     765,216$                   (97,317)$                   

HOME BUILDING
Total

Support and revenues
Contributions  and sponsorships 324,479$                  
Grants 102,200
Sales  to homeowners 270,000
Donated materia ls  and services 27,704

Total  support and revenues 724,383                    

Expenses
Direct costs

Hard costs 347,638                    
Soft costs 824,197                    

Indi rect costs 375,429                    
Discount on mortgages 144,810
Donated materia ls  and services 27,704

Total  expenses 1,719,778                 

Net loss (995,395)$                 

SPECIAL EVENTS Other
Trivia Events Total

Total  revenues 6,940$                 11,357$               18,297$              

Tota l  expenses ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      

Net income 6,940$                 11,357$               18,297$              

RESTORE
Total

Support and revenues
Sales 825,800$                  
Donated materia ls 841,511
Contributions 432,816                    
Grants 15,000                      

Tota l  support and revenues 2,115,127                 
Expenses

Cost of sa les 833,900
Other 1,166,662                 

Tota l  expenses 2,000,562                 

Net income 114,565$                  

OTHER
Total

Support and revenues
Contributions 779,892$                  
Other income 826,619                    

Tota l  support and revenues 1,606,511                 
Expenses

Management and general 589,707                    
Fundra is ing 251,588                    

Tota l  expenses 841,295                    

Net income 765,216$                  



A P P E N D I X  A



PASSED ADJUSTING JOURNAL ENTRIES 

7200.30

39999 Retained Earnings 36,241.00
20000 Accounts Payable 29,194.00
62645 Building Rent / Lease Expense 7,047.00

Total 36,241.00 36,241.00

4200.23

38010 Undesignated 15,130.00
19020 Unamort Discount Mortgages 15,130.00

Total 15,130.00 15,130.00

Total Passed Adjustments 51,371.00 51,371.00

Total All Journal Entries 51,371.00 51,371.00

Passed Adjustments
Passed Adjustments JE # 1
To pass on adjustment for SL lease expense

Passed Adjustments JE # 6
To carryforward PY PAJE





 

 

Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates  
 

Consolidated Financial Statements  
and Independent Auditor's Report 

 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Index 
 
 

1 

Page 

Independent Auditor's Report 2 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 4 

Consolidated Statements of Activities 6 

Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses 8 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 10 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 13 

 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



 

2 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Directors  
Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates  
St. Louis, MO 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and its 
affiliates, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021 
and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for 
the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.  

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and its affiliates as of December 31, 
2021 and 2020, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and its affiliates and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Habitat for Humanity Saint 
Louis and its affiliates' ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the 
financial statements are available to be issued. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements. 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



 

3 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and its affiliates’ internal 
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements. 

 
 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 

that raise substantial doubt about Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and its affiliates’ ability to 
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
 
 
Chicago, Illinois 
DATE 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

4 

 

2021 2020
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 142,992$          51,916$            
Restricted cash 79,720 86,474
Pledges receivable 2,100 17,600
Grants receivable 26,400 3,900
Other receivables, net 613,100 283,315
Home construction and inventory 936,359 1,494,120
ReStore inventory 234,590 320,162
Prepaid expenses and other assets 708,815 493,600

Total current assets 2,753,076        2,751,087         

Fixed assets
Property and equipment, net 3,629,265 3,746,672

Total fixed assets 3,629,265        3,746,672         

Long-term assets
Mortgages receivable, net 1,249,989 1,459,972
Investments in new markets tax credit programs 2,455,376 2,455,376
Capitalized costs, net 124,735 166,103

Total long-term assets 3,830,100        4,081,451         
  

Total assets 10,212,441$     10,579,210$     

Assets

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 

5 

2021 2020
Current liabilities

Lines of credit 377,048$          882,624$          
Current portion of long-term debt 40,611 29,767
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 973,076 834,494
Deferred revenue 650,560 834,959

Total current liabilities 2,041,295        2,581,844         

Deposits liability
Mortgage escrows 270,747 365,390

Long-term liabilities
Long-term debt 6,449,572 6,486,715

Total liabilities 8,761,614        9,433,949         

Commitments and contingencies

Net assets
Without donor restrictions 1,435,941        1,132,875         
With donor restrictions 14,886             12,386              

Total net assets 1,450,827        1,145,261         

Total liabilities and net assets 10,212,441$     10,579,210$     

Liabilities and Net Assets

 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Consolidated Statements of Activities 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 
 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 

6 

Without donor 
restrictions

With donor 
restrictions Total

Operating support and revenue
Contributions and sponsorships 1,395,256$       415,140$          1,810,396$       
Grants 375,180           -                   375,180
Sales to homeowners 1,548,002        -                   1,548,002
ReStore retail sales 997,770           -                   997,770
Donated property, materials and services 958,401           96,162             1,054,563
Fundraising and special events revenue 
(net of expenses of $0) -                    9,109                 9,109
Other income 1,065,852        -                   1,065,852
Net assets released from restrictions 517,911           (517,911)         -                   

Total operating support and revenue 6,858,372        2,500               6,860,872         

Operating expenses
Program services:
Home construction and 
construction support 3,342,278          -                    3,342,278          

ReStore retail operations 2,285,731        -                   2,285,731         

Total program services 5,628,009        -                   5,628,009         

Supporting activities:
Management and general 647,758           -                   647,758            
Fundraising 307,344           -                   307,344            

Total supporting activities 955,102           -                   955,102            

Total operating expenses 6,583,111        -                   6,583,111         

Other revenue 
Net investment return 27,805             -                   27,805              

Total other revenue 27,805             -                   27,805              

Change in net assets 303,066           2,500               305,566            

Net assets - beginning of year 1,132,875        12,386             1,145,261         

Net assets - end of year 1,435,941$       14,886$            1,450,827$       
 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Consolidated Statements of Activities 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 
 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 

7 

Without donor 
restrictions

With donor 
restrictions Total

Operating support and revenue
Contributions and sponsorships 1,216,262$       320,925$          1,537,187$       
Grants 117,200           -                   117,200
Sales to homeowners 270,000           -                   270,000
ReStore retail sales 825,800           -                   825,800
Donated property, materials and services 841,511           27,704             869,215
Fundraising and special events revenue 
(net of expenses of $0) -                    18,297               18,297
Investment income
Other income 805,189           -                   805,189
Net assets released from restrictions 417,005           (417,005)         -                   

Total operating support and revenue 4,492,967        (50,079)           4,442,888         

Operating expenses
Program services:

Home construction and construction 
support 1,719,778          -                    1,719,778          
ReStore retail operations 2,000,562        -                   2,000,562         

Total program services 3,720,340        -                   3,720,340         

Supporting activities:
Management and general 589,707           -                   589,707            
Fundraising 251,588           -                   251,588            

Total supporting activities 841,295           -                   841,295            

Total operating expenses 4,561,635        -                   4,561,635         

Other revenue 
Net investment return 21,430             -                   21,430              

Total other revenue 21,430             -                   21,430              

Change in net assets (47,238)           (50,079)           (97,317)            

Net assets - beginning of year 1,180,113        62,465             1,242,578         

Net assets - end of year 1,132,875$       12,386$            1,145,261$       
 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses 
Year Ended December 31, 2021 

 
 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 

8 

Construction
ReStore 

operations Total
Management 
and general Fundraising Total Total

Salaries and wages 695,637$           436,957$           1,132,594$        184,252$           212,583$           396,835$           1,529,429$        
Employee taxes and benefits 172,343             152,959             325,302             48,345               49,080               97,425               422,727             
Home construction costs 1,632,051          -                  1,632,051        -                  -                  -                  1,632,051        
Discount on mortgages 292,980             -                    292,980             -                    -                    -                    292,980             
Impairment on inventory 3,384                 -                    3,384                 -                    -                    -                    3,384                 
Cost of merchandise sales -                    1,043,973          1,043,973          -                    -                    -                    1,043,973          
New Market Tax Credit expenses 20,803               -                    20,803               -                    -                    -                    20,803               
Bad debt 184,989             -                    184,989             -                    -                    -                    184,989             
Committee expenses 562                    -                    562                    63                      -                    63                      625                    
Computer expenses 4,365                 2,456                 6,821                 2,336                 3,141                 5,477                 12,298               
Depreciation and amortization 77,150               66,926               144,076             14,697               -                    14,697               158,773             
Facilities cost 3,334                 510,827             514,161             28,998               -                    28,998               543,159             
Insurance 20,266               842                    21,108               32,051               -                    32,051               53,159               
Interest expense and service 
charges 180,889             11,375               192,264             37,534               2,704                 40,238               232,502             
Marketing and public relations 563                    631                    1,194                 211                    21,622               21,833               23,027               
Miscellaneous 17,278               6,376                 23,654               4,662                 345                    5,007                 28,661               
Office expenses 16,121               17,047               33,168               20,507               13,435               33,942               67,110               
Postage -                    -                    -                    108                    1,100                 1,208                 1,208                 
Professional fees -                    -                    -                    269,970             269,970             269,970             
Telephone 11,794               7,869                 19,663               3,439                 2,136                 5,575                 25,238               
Vehicle 7,769                 27,493               35,262               585                    1,198                 1,783                 37,045               

3,342,278$        2,285,731$        5,628,009$        647,758$           307,344$           955,102$           6,583,111$        

Program services Supporting activities

 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses 
Year Ended December 31, 2020 

 
 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
 

9 

Construction
ReStore 

operations Total
Management 
and general Fundraising Total Total

Salaries and wages 656,302$           349,505$           1,005,807$        214,342$           168,417$           382,759$           1,388,566$        
Employee taxes and benefits 167,895             116,688             284,583             33,030               37,517               70,547               355,130             
Home construction costs 375,342             120                  375,462           -                   -                  -                  375,462           
Discount on mortgages 144,810             -                    144,810             -                    -                    -                    144,810             
Impairment on inventory 928                    -                    928                    -                    -                    -                    928                    
Cost of merchandise sales -                    833,900             833,900             -                    -                    -                    833,900             
New Market Tax Credit expenses 10,208               -                    10,208               -                    -                    -                    10,208               
Bad debt -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Committee expenses 390                    -                    390                    1,103                 154                    1,257                 1,647                 
Computer expenses 1,473                 3,108                 4,581                 22,929               496                    23,425               28,006               
Depreciation and amortization 68,825               66,926               135,751             14,697               -                    14,697               150,448             
Facilities cost 7,238                 571,632             578,870             95,793               -                    95,793               674,663             
Insurance 25,357               888                    26,245               29,868               -                    29,868               56,113               
Interest expense and service 
charges 135,568             6,119                 141,687             62,467               2,510                 64,977               206,664             
Marketing and public relations 8,583                 -                    8,583                 248                    18,903               19,151               27,734               
Miscellaneous 9,010                 5,950                 14,960               7,328                 269                    7,597                 22,557               
Office expenses 20,961               12,402               33,363               21,260               16,590               37,850               71,213               
Postage 749                    -                    749                    1,211                 2,797                 4,008                 4,757                 
Professional fees 63,928               32                      63,960               84,545               -                    84,545               148,505             
Telephone 13,062               6,837                 19,899               -                    2,305                 2,305                 22,204               
Vehicle 9,149                 26,455               35,604               886                    1,630                 2,516                 38,120               

1,719,778$        2,000,562$       3,720,340$       589,707$           251,588$          841,295$          4,561,635$       

Program services Supporting activities

 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

10 

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities

Contribution and sponsorship receipts 1,311,712$       2,075,324$       
Grant receipts 352,680           114,862            
Sales to homeowners receipts 1,505,236        237,284            
ReStore retail receipts 1,083,342        825,809            
Net fundraising and special events receipts 9,109               18,297              
Investment receipts 27,805             21,430              
Other operating receipts 799,248           663,509            

Total receipts 5,089,132        3,956,515         

Salaries and wages paid (1,924,512)      (1,759,488)       
Home construction costs paid (1,226,082)      (1,149,633)       
Cost of merchandise sales (85,572)           (9)                     
New markets tax credit transaction costs paid (20,802)           (10,208)            
Committee expenses paid (625)                 (1,647)              
Computer expenses paid (12,298)           (28,006)            
Facilities expenses paid (483,478)         (1,368,180)       
Insurance paid (38,082)           (76,149)            
Interest expense and service charges paid (232,502)         (204,731)          
Marketing and PR expenses paid (23,027)           (27,734)            
Administrative expenses paid (155,985)         (161,206)          
Professional fees paid (269,970)         (148,505)          

Total disbursements  (4,472,935)      (4,935,496)       

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 616,197           (978,981)           

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

11 

2021 2020
Cash flows from investing activities 

Investment in Harbor Habitat Leverage III, L.L.C. -                   (1,194,824)       
Guarantee fees paid -                   (110,810)          

Net cash used in investing activities -                   (1,305,634)       

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments on lines of credit, net (505,576)         (117,809)          
Proceeds from long-term debt -                   2,771,250         
Principal payments on long-term debt (26,299)           (414,174)          

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (531,875)         2,239,267         

Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents and 
restricted cash

84,322               (45,348)             

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning 138,390           183,738            

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, end 222,712$           $          138,390 
 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 

12 

2021 2020
Reconciliation of change in net assets to net
cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Change in net assets 305,566$          (97,317)$          
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 
to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:

Discount on home construction and inventory 3,384 928                   
Discount on mortgages receivable 292,980 144,810            
Donated property, materials and services 85,376             (7,620)              
Bad debt 184,989           -                   
Depreciation and amortization 158,773             150,448             
Changes in assets and liabilities

Pledges receivable, net (169,489)           38,825               
Grants receivable, net (22,500)             4,500                 
Other receivables, net (329,783)           (20,395)             
ReStore inventory 196                   9                       
Home construction and inventory 554,377           (489,093)          
Prepaid expenses (215,215)         (482,033)          
Mortgages receivable (91,997)           (101,731)          
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 138,582           (578,204)          
Mortgage escrows (94,643)           5,088                
Deferred revenue (184,399)         452,804            

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 616,197$          (978,981)$        
 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
13 

Note 1 - Organization 

Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis ("Habitat") was organized as a nonprofit organization in the state 
of Missouri and is associated with Habitat for Humanity International, Inc. Habitat has received tax 
exempt status under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 to 
construct affordable, decent housing for sale to low-income families at cost and to build 
communities by encouraging existing homeowners to upgrade and improve their property. 

On July 10, 2014, HFHSL Community Housing Development Organization ("HFHSL CHDO") and 
on January 27, 2015, HFHSL Community Housing Development Corporation II ("HFHSL CHDC II"), 
were formed in the State of Missouri. 

HFHSL CHDO and HFHSL CHDC II are Community Housing Development Organizations 
("CHDO's") sanctioned by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development's ("HUD") 
HOME Program, whose purpose is to assist in developing community low-income housing. CHDO's 
receive certain priority and eligibility for HUD grants. 

On August 12, 2020, HFHSL QALICB Real Estate Holding LLC (''QALICB'') was organized as a 
nonprofit organization in the state of Missouri for the purpose of management of real estate for use 
in its homebuilding activity program. QALICB is owned entirely by Habitat. 

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis, 
HFHSL Community Housing Development Organization, and HFHSL Community Housing 
Development Corporation II, and HFHSL QALICB Real Estate Holding LLC (collectively, the 
"Organization"). Inter-company activity is eliminated in consolidation. 

The primary source of the Organization's revenues is contributions and sponsorships received from 
the general public, corporations, and religious organizations. Habitat also operates two retail 
hardware stores (the "ReStores") with sales to the general public. Inventory is primarily donated, 
with the sale proceeds used to carry out the Organization's mission. 

The Organization's activities are primarily comprised of the following: 

Program services 
Home construction, financing and support - Includes all home construction costs such as 
materials, supplies, labor and overhead, as well as financing certain mortgages for the 
homeowners. This programming also includes construction supporting costs such as real estate 
development, volunteer mobilization and family selection services.  

ReStore operations - Includes salaries, utilities, and overhead necessary to operate two 
discount and recycled materials hardware stores. This programming also includes the estimated 
value of donated merchandise sold in the stores. 

Supporting activities 
Management and general - Includes the functions necessary to maintain an equitable 
employment program; ensure an adequate working environment; provide coordination and 
articulation of the Organization's program strategy; secure proper administrative functioning of 
the Board of Directors; and manage the consolidated financial and budgetary responsibilities of 
the Organization. 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
14 

Fundraising - Provides the structure necessary to encourage and secure consolidated financial 
support for the Organization through grants, contributions, and special events.  

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies 

Basis of presentation 
The Organization is required to report information regarding its consolidated financial position and 
activities according to two classes of net assets: without donor restrictions and with donor 
restrictions. Additionally, information is required to segregate program service expenses from 
support expenses. Support expenses include management and general and fundraising expenses.  

Principles of consolidation 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Habitat, HFHSL 
CHDO, HFHSL CHDC and QALICB. All intercompany balances and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. 

Revenue recognition 
The Organization recognizes revenue under Topic 606 when (or as) the promised services are 
transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which it expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those services. To determine revenue recognition whether contracts are 
within the scope of ASC 606, the Organization performs the following five steps: (i) identify the 
contract(s) with a customer; (ii) identify the performance obligation(s) in the contract; (iii) determine 
the transaction price; (iv) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation(s) in the 
contract; and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the performance obligation(s) are satisfied. At 
contract inception, the Organization assesses the services promised within each contract, assesses 
whether each promised service is distinct and identifies those that are performance obligations. The 
Organization recognizes as revenue the amount of the transaction price that is allocated to the 
respective performance obligation when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied. 

Contributions and grants received are recorded as without donor restrictions or with donor 
restrictions support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. 
Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair market value. 

Conditional promises to give are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, when the 
conditions on which they depend are substantially met. Contributions received with donor-imposed 
restrictions that are met in the same year as received are reported as unrestricted revenues. The 
expiration of temporary restrictions on net assets (i.e., the donor imposed stipulated purpose has 
been fulfilled, or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as reclassifications between 
the applicable classes of net assets. 

Unconditional pledges receivable that are expected to be collected within a year are recorded at 
their net realizable value when the donor makes the promise. Unconditional pledges receivable that 
are expected to be collected in the future years are recorded at the present value of their estimated 
future cash flows. 

Grants that are received prior to recognition of revenue are recorded as deferred revenue. 

Sales to homeowners represent the sale of homes built or rehabilitated by the Organization. The 
resulting mortgages are noninterest-bearing and have been discounted based upon prevailing 
market rates for low-income housing at the inception of the mortgages. The Organization 
recognizes income from the sales to homeowners when home closings occur. 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
15 

Donated property, materials and services 
Donated materials are valued at the lower of estimated donor cost or fair value at the date of 
contribution. Certain professional services are donated to the Organization by various 
organizations. Since these donated services meet the criteria for recognition, as stated by generally 
accepted accounting principles, they are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. In addition, a 
substantial number of volunteers have donated a significant amount of time to the Organization. 
These donated services have not been recognized as contributions in the consolidated financial 
statements since the recognition criteria, as stated by generally accepted accounting principles, 
were not met. Some donated materials and services are designated by the donor for specific 
construction projects, and accordingly, are recorded as with donor restrictions.  

Donated investments are recorded at the fair market value as of the date of the contribution. Gains 
and losses on investments and other assets or liabilities, are reported as increases or decreases in 
unrestricted net assets, unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law. 

Net assets 
The Organization classifies net assets as without donor restrictions and with donor restrictions. 

Without donor restrictions net assets of the Organization are neither permanently restricted nor 
temporarily restricted by donor-imposed stipulations. 

With donor restrictions net assets of the Organization result (a) from contributions and other inflows 
of assets whose use by the Organization is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither or 
either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the Organization 
pursuant to those stipulations, (b) from other asset enhancements and diminishments subject to the 
same kinds of stipulations and (c) from reclassifications to (or from) other classes of net assets as a 
consequence of donor-imposed stipulations, their expiration by passage of time, or their fulfillment 
and removal by actions of the Organization pursuant to those stipulations. 

Use of estimates 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Investments  
The Organization's long-term investments are investments in entities related to the New Markets 
Tax Credit ("NMTC") program. The NMTC investments are accounted for using the equity method. 
Under the equity method, the initial investment is recorded at cost and is subsequently increased or 
decreased by its share of income or loss and increased or decreased by the amount of any 
contributions made or distributions received. All investment activity is reflected in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of activities as net investment return. 

The Organization assess other-than-temporary declines in values in its NMTC investments. 
Annually, the carrying value of each investment is compared to its respective fair value. If an other-
than-temporary decline in its carrying value exists, an impairment loss is recorded on the 
Organization's consolidated statement of activities to reduce the investment to fair value.  

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
16 

Cash and cash equivalents 
The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or 
less to be cash equivalents.  

Inventory 
Inventory primarily consists of ReStore merchandise, construction in progress, homes available for 
sale, and land and buildings occupied and subject to lease with the option to purchase. 

ReStore inventory consists of materials and is stated at donated value. Any purchased inventory is 
stated at the lower of cost or market value. 

All direct material and equipment costs and indirect costs related to home construction are recorded 
as construction in progress inventory. When revenue from the sale of a home is recognized, the 
corresponding costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of activities and changes in net 
assets as program services.  

Homes are transferred from construction in progress to homes available for sale once completed, 
with the accrued impairment for the sale of the mortgage and the expected loss on the sale of the 
property. Homes available for sale also includes foreclosed homes mortgage balances which are 
recorded at the unpaid mortgage balance at the time of foreclosure.  

Mortgages receivable 
Mortgages receivable consist of noninterest-bearing notes received from homebuyers in connection 
with the sale of homes constructed by the Organization. The notes are discounted to their present 
values using various interest rates at the time of closing. The discount is amortized over the lives of 
the mortgages using the effective interest method. An allowance for estimated doubtful accounts 
has been setup based on past collection experience of homeowners.  

Assets held for sale  
Long-lived assets to be sold are classified as "held for sale" in the period in which certain criteria 
are met such as the estimated timeframe in which the assets are expected to be sold. As a result, 
depreciation is not recorded on an asset once deemed to be held for sale, and it is recorded in the 
financial statements at the lower of its carrying value or fair value less cost to sell.  

Capitalization and depreciation 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Improvements are capitalized, while expenditures for 
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Upon disposal of depreciable 
property, the appropriate property accounts are reduced by the related costs and accumulated 
depreciation. Assets are depreciated over their estimated service lives. The estimated service lives 
of the assets for depreciation purposes may be different than their actual economic useful lives. 

Construction in progress 
Costs incurred for construction in progress are capitalized when incurred. If at any time 
management determines that the costs incurred would no longer provide a future benefit to the 
Organization, the costs are expensed in the period in which the determination is made. 

Capitalized costs 
Guarantee fees paid in conjunction with the NMTC investments are capitalized and amortized over 
seven years, the NMTC guarantee period.  

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
17 

Impairment of long-lived assets 
The Organization reviews its property for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. If the fair value is less than the 
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference. No impairment 
losses have been recognized during 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

Income taxes 
Habitat has applied for and received a determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service 
("IRS") to be treated as a tax exempt entity pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code and did not have any unrelated business income for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 
2019. Due to its tax-exempt status, Habitat is not subject to income taxes. They are required to file, 
and do file, tax returns with the IRS and other taxing authorities. The Forms 990, Return of 
Organization Exempt from Income Tax, are subject to examination by the IRS generally for three 
years after they were filed. 

Advertising costs 
Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred.  

Functional expenses 
The costs of providing program and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in 
the statements of functional expenses. Included in each functional category are the expenses 
directly attributable to that functional area plus certain indirect or shared costs that have been 
allocated to the area. Expenses are allocated based on program, management and general, and 
resource development, with ReStore expenses being separately netted. Program expenses are 
defined as all costs related to the construction of homes, including hard and soft costs of a 
development, as well as all construction overhead expenses (staff salaries and benefits, and 
operating expenses related to construction). Program expenses also include the costs of mobilizing 
the volunteers used in the construction of homes, as well as the cost to select and educate partner 
families.  

Recent accounting pronouncements  
Accounting Standards Update 2016-02 
In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standard Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) 
("ASU 2016-02"), which requires lessees to recognize on the balance sheet the assets and liabilities 
for the rights and obligations created by leases with lease terms of more than 12 months. The 
recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a 
lessee will continue to primarily depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. 
However, unlike current U.S. GAAP, which requires only capital leases to be recognized on the 
balance sheet, ASU 2016-02 will require both types of leases to be recognized on the balance 
sheet. ASU 2016-02 also requires disclosures about the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash 
flows arising from leases. These disclosures include qualitative and quantitative requirements, 
providing additional information about the amounts recorded in the financial statements. As part of 
the election to defer the standard, ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2021 with early adoption permitted. The Organization is currently evaluating the 
effect the updated standard will have on its consolidated financial statements.  

Accounting Standards Update 2016-13 
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326) 
("ASU 2016-13") and subsequently issued various corresponding updates that will update the 
impairment model for financial assets measured at amortized cost, known as the Current Expected 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
18 

Credit Loss ("CECL") model. For trade and other receivables, held-to-maturity debt securities, loans 
and other instruments, entities will be required to use a new forward-looking "expected loss" model 
that generally will result in the earlier recognition of allowance for losses. For available-for-sale debt 
securities with unrealized losses, there will be no change to the measurement of credit losses, 
except that unrealized losses due to credit-related factors will be recognized as an allowance on the 
balance sheet with a corresponding adjustment to earnings in the income statement. There are 
various transition methods available upon adoption. ASU 2016-13, as amended by ASU 2019-10, is 
effective for nonpublic companies for periods beginning after December 15, 2022. Early adoption is 
permitted. The Organization is currently assessing the impact of adopting this guidance on its 
financial statements. 

Note 3 - Availability and liquidity 

The following represents the Organization's financial assets at December 31, 2021 and 2020: 

2021 2020

Financial assets at year end
Cash and cash equivalents 142,992$          51,916$            
Restricted cash 79,720             86,474              
Contributions receivable 28,500             21,500              

Total financial assets 251,212           159,890            

Less amounts not available to be used within one year
Net assets with donor restrictions 14,886             12,386              

Financial assets not available to be used within one year 14,886             12,386              

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures 
within one year 236,326$           147,504$           

 
Liquidity management 
The Organization maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general 
expenditures, construction expenditures, liabilities and other obligations become due. The 
Organization utilizes project specific construction lines of credit to manage hard and soft 
construction expenses, as well as certain organization expenses as related directly to the 
construction program. These lines exist solely during the specific construction period and are paid 
in full upon the origination of a repayable mortgage on the sale of each home.  

To help manage unanticipated liquidity needs, the Organization utilizes short-term (on a daily basis) 
cash flow analysis and projection report. The Organization also utilizes a long-term cash flow 
analysis that operates as a trended profit and loss report which uses the annual budget as a basis, 
but is updated in real time to reflect actual revenue and expenses. This allows for the projection of 
the availability of cash surplus and thus enhanced planning and budgeting for times of unexpected 
liquidity needs. 

Additionally, the Organization has a proven track record of applying for and receiving grants and tax 
credit allocations that have been utilized to cover any gaps in revenue versus expense, as well as 
to actually fund ongoing operational expenses.  

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
19 

Note 4 - Cash and cash equivalents 

The Organization maintains its cash reserve balances in several accounts. The cash reserve 
balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. At times, these balances may 
exceed the federal insurance limits; however, the Organization has not experienced any losses with 
respect to its bank balances in excess of government provided insurance. Management believes 
that no significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these cash reserve balances 
during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. 

Restricted cash consists of the following as of December 31, 2021 and 2020: 

2021 2020

Homeowner repair escrow 15,458$            1,471$              
Restricted for NMTC expenses (Note 11) 64,262 85,003

79,720$            86,474$            
 

Note 5 - Project fund 

In accordance with the Financing Agreement dated December 1, 2017 (the "Financing Agreement"), 
proceeds from the Series 2017 Revenue Bonds (see Note 15) are required to be deposited with 
Royal Bank of Missouri, the fiscal agent. The project fund is to be used to pay for the rehabilitation 
costs of the Organization's new administrative office building at 3830 South Grand Boulevard. 
During 2018, the funds were used towards the construction of the new office building.  

Note 6 - Investments 

Certain investments have been designated by the Board for specific purposes (see Note 16). 
Income on those investments includes the following for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 
2020: 

2021 2020

Investment income from NMTC investments $            23,192  $            17,542 
Interest and dividend income 4,951 3,913 
Realized (loss)/gain on investments (338) (25)                   

27,805$            21,430$            
 

Note 7 - Pledges receivable 

Pledges, or promises to give, consist of contributions restricted for the purpose of building a home. 
At December 31, 2021 and 2020, pledges receivable for house sponsorships totaled $2,100 and 
$17,600, respectively. The promises to give are unconditional and are expected to be collected 
within one year. 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
20 

Note 8 - Grants receivable and grant revenue 

Grants receivable as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 consists primarily of reimbursement type 
grants for home construction costs: 

2021 2020

City of St. Louis HOME Funds -$                 3,900$              
LaSaison Phase 1 26,400             -                   

26,400$            3,900$              
 

Grant revenue earned during 2021 and 2020 consists of the following: 

2021 2020

Affordable Housing Trust Fund 255,980$           -$                  
St. Louis Philanthropic Organization 5,000               -                   
St. Louis Community Foundation -                  25,000              
US Bank 30,000               -                    
Bank of America 25,000               25,000               
Other 59,200               67,200               

375,180$          117,200$           
 

Note 9 - Mortgages receivable 

Mortgages receivable consist of noninterest-bearing mortgages secured by real estate, receivable 
in monthly installments through years ranging to 2049. Mortgage receivables include those 
mortgages repurchased from CitiMortgage upon homeowner default and second promissory notes 
on homes under the zero-equivalent mortgage method. Each mortgage is discounted to the value it 
could be sold to a third-party lender. 

The Organization utilizes an affordable mortgage analysis method for financing homes. Under this 
method, the lending bank charges the homebuyer a below-market rate of interest. The monthly 
payments the homebuyer makes to the lending bank are the same as if the Organization was 
providing a zero-percent loan directly to the homebuyer. The Organization sells homes at a reduced 
price in order for the mortgage with interest to be equivalent to the mortgage with no interest at a 
normal sale price. The Organization holds the second mortgage on each home which will be 
forgiven over the life of the mortgage.  DRAFT - S

UBJE
CT TO C

HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
21 

Mortgages receivable as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are presented net of unamortized 
discount resulting from the imputation of interest as follows: 

2021 2020

Mortgages receivable at face value 3,535,051$       4,228,945$        
Less: Reserve                                   (1,833,831)      (2,083,320)        
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts                   (451,231)         (685,653)           

Long-term portion of mortgages receivable 1,249,989$       1,459,972$        
 

Note 10 - Home construction and inventory 

Home construction and inventory for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 consists of the 
following:  

2021 2020

Land 204,834$          231,264$           
Construction in progress 731,525 1,230,640
Leased and available-for-sale homes  -                  32,216

936,359$          1,494,120$        
 

Leases for homes contain purchase options, which allow the lessee to purchase the home with an 
affordable mortgage payable over 30 years. Leased and available-for-sale homes are valued in 
inventory at the lower of cost or net realizable proceeds after all expected selling costs. During 2021 
and 2020, all leased homes have been sold to Habitat homebuyers.  

Note 11 - Investments in New Markets Tax Credit programs 

Habitat entered into two transactions involving New Markets Tax Credit ("NMTC") financing. Under 
the NMTC structure, Habitat makes investments in a leverage lender, whose sole purpose is to lend 
to an investment fund. The investment fund entity also receives capital contribution equity from 
private investors. The private investor receives tax credits in return for its contribution into the 
investment fund. The investment fund uses the loan from the leverage lender and the equity from 
the investors to make an investment in a community development entity ("CDE"). All of the 
proceeds received by the CDE are then loaned to Habitat.  

Investment in Harbor Habitat Leverage II, LLC 
In 2017, Habitat made an investment in Harbor Habitat Leverage II, LLC in the amount of 
$1,207,410, plus transaction costs of $53,142. Habitat is the 16.67% member of Harbor Habitat 
Leverage II, LLC. Habitat recorded its investment at cost plus transaction costs. In return for its 
investment, Habitat received a loan from Harbor Community Fund XIII, LLC in the amount of 
$1,715,000.  

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, Habitat's investment in Harbor Habitat Leverage II, LLC was 
$1,260,552.  

In December 2024, Twain Investment Fund 296, LLC (the "2017 Fund") and the upstream effective 
owner of Harbor Community Fund XIII, LLC (holder of the promissory note due from the Habitat) is 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
22 

expected to exercise its put option. Under the terms of the put option agreement, Harbor Habitat 
Leverage II, LLC is expected to purchase the ownership interest of the 2017 Fund. If the put option 
is not exercised, Harbor Habitat Leverage II, LLC has the option to purchase (call), at any time 
during the 12-month period following the expiration of the put option. Exercise of the option will 
effectively allow Habitat to extinguish its outstanding debt owed to the 2017 Fund. 

Investment in Harbor Habitat Leverage III, LLC 
In 2020, Habitat made an investment in Harbor Habitat Leverage III, LLC in the amount of 
$1,111,838, plus transaction costs of $82,986. Habitat is the 25% member of Harbor Habitat 
Leverage III, LLC. Habitat recorded its investment at cost plus transactions costs. In return for its 
investment, Habitat received a loan from Harbor Community Fund XXII, LLC in the amount of 
$1,521,250.  

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, Habitat's investment in Harbor Habitat Leverage III, LLC was 
$1,194,824.  

In June 2027, USBCDC Investment Fund 346, LLC (the "2020 Fund") and the upstream effective 
owner of Harbor Community Fund XXII, LLC (holder of the promissory note due from Habitat) is 
expected to exercise its put option. Under the terms of the put option agreement, Harbor Habitat 
Leverage III, LLC is expected to sell the ownership interest of the 2020 Fund. If the put option is not 
exercised, Harbor Habitat Leverage III, LLC has the option to purchase (call), at any time during the 
12-month period following the expiration of the put option. Exercise of the option will effectively 
allow Habitat to extinguish its outstanding debt owed to the 2020 Fund.  

Management expects the put option for each of its NMTC transactions to be exercised at the end of 
each respective compliance period. If that does occur, management anticipates revenue from the 
forgiveness of debt as follows for the years ending December 31: 

Revenue

2022 -$                 
2023 -                  
2024 454,448           
2025 -                  
2026 -                  
2027 326,426           

Total 780,874$          
 

Interest income earned from the investments and interest expense incurred from the loans during 
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows: 

2021 2020

Interest income 23,192$            17,542$            
Interest expense (30,001)           (26,110)             

Net interest (6,809)$            (8,568)$            
 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
23 

Note 12 - Fixed assets  

Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful 
lives of the assets. Property and equipment as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 is comprised of the 
following:  

Useful life 2021 2020

Land N/A 1,141,364$       1,141,364$        
Building and improvements 10 - 40 years 2,800,610 2,788,450
Equipment 3 - 39 years 548,905 548,905
Vehicles 5 years 220,087 222,087
Computer software 3 years 42,687 42,687
Construction in progress N/A -                  12,160              

Total property and equipment 4,753,653        4,755,653          
(1,124,388)      (1,008,981)        

Property and equipment, net 3,629,265$       3,746,672$        

Less: Accumulated depreciation

 
Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $117,407 and 
$117,407, respectively.  

Note 13 - Capitalized costs 

The guarantee fees associated with the NMTC transactions have been capitalized and amortized 
over the seven-year guarantee period. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, guarantee fees 
amounted to $241,917 and $241,917, respectively, and accumulated amortization amounted to 
$117,182 and $75,814, respectively. During the years ending December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
amortization expense totaled $41,368 and $33,041, respectively.  

Estimated amortization expense for the ensuing years is as follows: 

Year Amount

2022 34,560$            
2023 34,560             
2024 34,560             
2025 15,830             
2026 5,225               

Thereafter -                  

124,735$          
 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
24 

Note 14 - Lines of credit 

Lines of credit at December 31, 2021 and 2020 consist of the following:  

Lender Face amount Outstanding 
Interest rate + 

prime rate Maturity date Function
Status,

report date

People's National Bank, N.A. 592,500$           166,028$          4.25% 9/13/2022 Construction To be renewed
People's National Bank, N.A. 12,500               12,500             4.25% 12/19/2022 Construction To be renewed
People's National Bank, N.A. 450,000             144,825           4.25% 9/16/2022 Construction To be renewed
People's National Bank, N.A. 535,000             11,632             4.25% 12/30/2022 Construction To be renewed
People's National Bank, N.A. 76,500               42,063             4.25% 10/26/2022 Construction To be renewed

Total lines of credit, 12/31/21 377,048$          
 

Lender Face amount Outstanding 
Interest rate + 

prime rate Maturity date Function
Status,

report date

People's National Bank, N.A. 592,500$           431,412$          4.25% 9/13/2021 Construction To be renewed
People's National Bank, N.A. 12,500               12,500             4.25% 12/19/2021 Construction To be renewed
People's National Bank, N.A. 450,000             282,883           4.25% 9/16/2021 Construction To be renewed
Royal Banks of Missouri 800,000             155,829           4.25% 11/4/2021 Permanent To be renewed

Total lines of credit, 12/31/20 882,624$          
 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
25 

Note 15 - Long-term debt 

Long-term debt at December 31, 2021 and 2020 consists of the following: 

2021 2020
IFF Note A

The loan in the amount of $1,116,593, dated
September 16, 2020, is held by St. Louis New Markets
Tax Credit Fund 59, LLC. The loan bears interest at
5% per annum. Commencing on December 1, 2020,
quarterly interest payments are due. The loan matures
on June 27, 2026 when all principal and accrued
interest is due. The loan is secured by real estate and
an assignment of leases and rents. 1,116,593$         1,116,593$         

IFF Note B

The loan in the amount of $133,407, dated September
16, 2020, is held by St. Louis New Markets Tax Credit
Fund 59, LLC. The loan bears interest at 5% per
annum. Commencing on December 1, 2020, quarterly
interest payments are due. The loan matures on June
27, 2026 when all principal and accrued interest is due.
The loan is secured by real estate and an assignment
of leases and rents. 133,407 133,407              

Harbor Community Fund XIII LLC
The loan in the amount of $1,715,000, dated
December 20, 2017, is held by Harbor Community
Fund XIII LLC. The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of
0.7041%. The loan matures on December 20, 2037.
Commencing on June 5, 2018, semi-annual payments
are due until December 5, 2024 when principal and
interest payments commence. The loan is secured by
the operating account, Joint expense Non-POB
account and all other bank accounts held by U.S.
Bank. The loan is also guaranteed by a related party if
an event of NMTC recapture occurs. The loan has a
put option feature that is exercisable in December 2024
(Note 11). 1,715,000 1,715,000

 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
26 

 
2021 2020

Harbor Community Fund XXII LLC

The loan in the amount of $1,521,250, dated June 4,
2020, is held by Harbor Community Fund XIII LLC. The
loan bears interest at fixed rate of 0.7309%. The loan
matures on June 4, 2040. Commencing on December
5, 2020, semi-annual interest payments are due until
December 5, 2027 when principal and interest
payments commence. The loan is secured by the
operating account, Joint expense Non-POB account
and all other bank accounts held by U.S. Bank. The
loan is also guaranteed by a related party if an event of
NMTC recapture occurs. The loan has a put option
feature that is exercisable in June 2027 (Note 11). 1,521,250 1,521,250           

Series 2017 Revenue Bonds
On December 1, 2017, The Industrial Development
Authority of the City of St. Louis, Missouri, issued
Series 2017 revenue bonds in the amount of
$2,040,000 to finance the rehabilitation of 3830 South
Grand Boulevard, St. Louis, MO. Royal Bank of
Missouri is the fiscal agent. During 2020, the terms of
the note were changed reducing the principal amount
to $2,030,232. The note initially carries interest at the
rate of 3.3%. Commencing in February 2023, the note
will bear interest at 2.52% plus the rate of the Federal
Home Loan Bank of Des Moines 5 Year Long Term
Fixed Rate Advance, but is not to be adjusted more
often than each five years. Principal and interest
payments in the amount of $8,920 were due monthly
beginning on January 1, 2020 but were deferred to
commence on April 1, 2020. The loan matures on
December 1, 2049. 2,003,933           2,030,232           

Total 6,490,183           6,516,482           

Less: current maturities (40,610)               (29,767)               

Net long-term debt 6,449,573$         6,486,715$         
 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
27 

 
Aggregate annual maturities of the mortgages and notes payable for each of the five following years 
and thereafter is as follows:  

Year Amount

2022 40,610             
2023 41,990             
2024 43,237             
2025 171,318           
2026 1,423,733        

Thereafter 4,769,295        

6,490,183$       
 

Note 16 - Net assets with donor restrictions  

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods: 

2021 2020

Construction projects -$                 -$                 
Other 14,886 12,386

14,886$            12,386$            
 

Net assets of and $517,911 and $417,005 were released from donor restrictions by incurring 
expenses satisfying the purpose or time restrictions specified by donors for the years ended 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  

Note 17 - Related party transactions 

Habitat has a nonbinding covenant with Habitat for Humanity International, Inc. ("HFHI") to make an 
annual voluntary tithe payment to HFHI. In 2021 and 2020, Habitat paid $1,000 in tithe per year.  

In 2013, HFHI implemented its Stewardship and Organizational Sustainability Initiative ("SOSI"), 
which requires payment from affiliates of annual fees based upon the size of the individual affiliate, 
in addition to the annual tithe. The annual fee required of Habitat is $25,000. In 2019, Habitat paid 
$25,000 for the previous year's SOSI commitment. In 2020, HFHI has deferred the U.S. 
Stewardship and Organizational Sustainability Initiative ("US-SOSI") fee as follows: to be invoiced 
September 1, 2020. The first half of the invoiced amount will be due on November 1, and the 
balance will be due February 1 of the subsequent year. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the 
payable amounted to $12,500 and $12,500, and is included in accounts payable and accrued 
expenses on the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position. 

Note 18 - Operating leases 

On March 27, 2013, Habitat entered into a lease agreement to open a second ReStore location. 
The lease commenced on June 1, 2013 and terminated on May 31, 2018, with two five-year options 
to renew. During 2018, Habitat exercised the renewal option through May 31, 2023. The lease 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
28 

provides for annual base rent, a portion of which is donated back to Habitat each year on  
June 1, and monthly base rent payable by Habitat.  

On November 14, 2016, Habitat entered into an amended lease agreement effective January 1, 
2015. The new lease agreement states the Landlord shall compensate Habitat for the work 
performed, amount of any rent collected, and the amount of any invoice for service paid on behalf of 
the Landlord. During 2021 and 2020, Habitat earned $136,842 and $109,288, respectively, of 
reimbursement expenses. In addition, the Landlord shall compensate Habitat with a management 
fee in the amount equal to 15% of the reimbursement expenses. During 2021 and 2020, Habitat 
earned a management fee of $172,606 and $83,143, respectively. The reimbursement and the 
management fee are included in other income on the accompanying consolidated statements of 
activities.  

The future minimum rental commitments under all such operating leases for the next two years are 
as follows: 

Total annual
Year base rent

2022 369,454           
2023 156,037           

Total 525,491$          
 

On September 16, 2020, Habitat entered into a ground lease agreement with HFHSL QALICB Real 
Estate Holding LLC. The lease term is for 25 years terminating on September 16, 2045, with an 
option to renew for 5 more years. Commencing on October 1, 2020, Habitat shall pay the lessor 
annual base rent of $225,095 in monthly installments. The base rent shall increase 2% each year 
during the term of the lease. The activity is eliminated in consolidation. 

The future minimum rental commitments under the ground lease for the next five years are as 
follows: 

Base Rent

2022 230,745$          
2023 235,360           
2024 240,067           
2025 244,868           
2026 249,766           

Total 1,200,806$       
 

Note 19 - Lease agreements 

The Organization leases some of its properties from time-to-time. Although the Organization is a 
for-sale housing program, certain situations may arise where a property may be temporarily leased 
before it is sold. Most situations involve a lease-to-own or option-to-purchase agreement, but others 
may be only a rental situation for a fixed or renewable term. 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
29 

During 2021 and 2020, Habitat was receiving lease payments on one home.  

Note 20 - Mortgages sold with recourse 

Prior to 2002, Habitat sold mortgages receivable with recourse to the Missouri Housing 
Development Commission. Habitat has guaranteed payment of the mortgage loans and in the event 
of any loan default, Habitat will replace the nonperforming loan with a performing loan or will buy 
back the nonperforming loan at par. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the uncollected balances 
remaining on the mortgages totaled $1,051 and $2,828, respectively. 

Note 21 - Commitments and contingencies 

The purchase option agreement when a home is sold contains a provision that if the home is sold 
within 10 years of the initial date of the lease agreement, the Organization has the right to receive a 
certain percentage of the gain on the sale of the home. The percentage ranges from 100% if sold 
during the first year to 10% if sold in the 10th year.  

The Organization provides a limited warranty to homeowners for all work done and materials 
provided in the construction of the home. This warranty is for one year from the date the buyer took 
occupancy, including the buyer's lease term. During this time, upon written notice from the 
purchaser, the Organization will repair or replace substantial defects free of charge. However, the 
Organization has the right to use the funds in the major repair fund (a portion of each mortgage 
payment is allocated to this escrow account). Based on past experience, management has 
determined no reserve is needed for warranties. 

COVID-19 
The COVID-19 pandemic, whose effects first became known in January 2020, is having a broad 
and negative impact on commerce and financial markets around the world. The United States and 
global markets experienced significant declines in value resulting from uncertainty caused by the 
pandemic. The Organization is closely monitoring its investment portfolio and its liquidity and is 
actively working to minimize the impact of these declines. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on 
the Organization’s operational and financial performance will depend on certain developments, 
including the duration and spread of the outbreak and its impacts on the Organization’s customers, 
employees, and vendors, all of which at present, cannot be determined. Accordingly, the extent to 
which COVID-19 may impact the Organization’s financial position and changes in net assets and 
cash flows is uncertain and the accompanying consolidated financial statements include no 
adjustments relating to the effects of this pandemic. 

Note 22 - Employee benefit plan 

Habitat implemented a SIMPLE-IRA plan in 1998. An employee was eligible for the plan if $2,400 of 
wages have been earned in any prior year. On December 31, 2019, Habitat terminated the 
SIMPLE-IRA plan in favor of a new Defined Contribution 401(k) Profit Sharing retirement plan. An 
employee is eligible for the plan after 1 year of entry service, which amounts to 1,000 hours of 
service and 12 months after hire date. Participation in the plan is optional. 401(k) elective deferrals, 
up to a percentage of an employee's pay as decided by the Organization, are matched. Matching 
contributions are calculated based on the employee's pay and 401(k) elective deferrals for the 
payroll period. Matching contributions are made for all persons who were active participants at any 
time during that payroll period. Any percentage chosen will apply for the entire plan year. During the 
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, Habitat's contribution to the plan amounted to $16,029 
and $11,848, respectively.  

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE



Habitat for Humanity Saint Louis and Affiliates 
 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

 
30 

Note 23 - Paycheck Protection Program loans 

On April 8, 2020, Habitat received loan proceeds in the amount of $432,000 under the Paycheck 
Protection Program ("PPP"). Established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic 
Security Act ("CARES Act"), the PPP provides for loans to qualifying businesses in amounts up to 
2.5 times the business's average monthly payroll expenses. PPP loans and accrued interest rate 
are forgivable after a "covered period" (eight or 24 weeks) as long as the borrower maintains its 
payroll levels and uses the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent, and 
utilities. The forgiveness amount will be reduced if the borrower terminates employees or reduces 
salaries during the covered period. 

Additionally, on January 25, 2021, Habitat received loan proceeds in the amount of $434,923 under 
the Paycheck Protection Program. 

Habitat initially recorded notes payable and subsequently recorded forgiveness when the loan 
obligations were legally released. Habitat recognized $437,174 and $435,148 of loan forgiveness 
income for the years ending December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which is included in other 
income on the accompanying consolidated statements of activities. As of December 31, 2021 and 
2020, no principal and interest payments were required to be made.  

Note 24 - Subsequent events 

Events that occur after the consolidated balance sheet date but before the consolidated financial 
statements were available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects 
of subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the consolidated 
balance sheet date are recognized in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
Subsequent events which reflect significant matters but which provide evidence about conditions 
that existed after the consolidated balance sheet date require disclosure in the accompanying 
notes. Management evaluated the activity of the Organization through DATE (the date the 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued) and concluded that no subsequent 
events have occurred that would require recognition in the consolidated financial statements or 
disclosure in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

 

DRAFT - S
UBJE

CT TO C
HANGE


	1. Agenda June 2022
	2. April Minutes
	3.As of May 2022 Dashboard
	4. June CEO Report
	4a. Habitat for Humanity BPA 2021
	4b. Habitat for Humanity STL 2021 DRAFT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



